Public Document Pack

Rutland County Council
Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP
Telephone 01572 722577 Email:governance@rutland.gov.uk

Ladies and Gentlemen,
A meeting of the SCHOOLS' FORUM will be held via Microsoft Teams on Thursday,
1st October, 2020 commencing at 4.00 pm when it is hoped you will be able to
attend.
Yours faithfully

Mark Andrews
Interim Chief Executive
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record,
take photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that
is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is available at www.rutland.gov.uk/mycouncil/have-your-say/

AGENDA
1)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2)

MINUTES AND ACTIONS FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING
To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Schools’ Forum held on 18 June
2020.
(Pages 5 - 10)

3)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
In accordance with the Regulations, Members are invited to declare any
personal or prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of those
interests in respect of items on this Agenda and/or indicate if Section 106 of
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

4)

PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS
To receive any petitions, deputations and questions received from Members of
the Public in accordance with the provisions of Procedure Rule 217.
The total time allowed for this item shall be 30 minutes. Petitions, declarations
and questions shall be dealt with in the order in which they are received.

Questions may also be submitted at short notice by giving a written copy to the
Committee Administrator 15 minutes before the start of the meeting.
The total time allowed for questions at short notice is 15 minutes out of the
total time of 30 minutes. Any petitions, deputations and questions that have
been submitted with prior formal notice will take precedence over questions
submitted at short notice. Any questions that are not considered within the
time limit shall receive a written response after the meeting and be the subject
of a report to the next meeting.
(5 MINUTES for items 1, 2, 3)

5)

ANNUAL REVIEW OF SCHOOLS FORUM MEMBERSHIP INCLUDING
ELECTION OF CHAIR AND DEPUTY CHAIR
(ITEM FOR DECISION)
(5 MINUTES)

6)

FUNDING: UPDATE
To receive a report from Andrew Merry
(ITEM FOR INFORMATION)
(15 MINUTES)
(Pages 11 - 14)

7)

DSG RECOVERY PLAN: UPDATE
To receive a report from Andrew Merry and Kevin Quinn
(ITEM FOR INFORMATION)
(10 MINUTES)
(Pages 15 - 18)

8)

SEND STRATEGY
To receive an update from Bernadette Caffrey/Kevin Quinn
(ITEM FOR INFORMATION)
(10 MINUTES)
(Pages 19 - 32)

9)

ANY URGENT BUSINESS

10) FORWARD PLAN FOR 2020
(Pages 33 - 34)
11) MEETING DATE


Thursday, 10th December 2020, 4.00 – 5.00 p.m.

---oOo--DISTRIBUTION
MEMBERS OF THE SCHOOLS’ FORUM
Name
Representing
Mr C Smith (Chair)
Academies
Mrs S Milner (Vice Chair) Academies
Mrs A Chambers
Academies
Mr S Cox
Special Schools
Mrs M Darlington
PVI
Mr P French
Dioceses
Mr B Gale
Trace Union
Mrs J Gilboy
Academies (Governors)
Mr R Gooding
Academies
Mr R Shore
Post 16 Provision
Mrs F Wilce
Maintained Schools
Mr S Williams
Academies

DEPUTIES:
Name
Mr A Menzies
Mr B Solly
Mrs C Johnston
Mr J Harrison
Mrs H Stockhill
Mrs K Smith
Mrs L Milnes
Mrs D Chipman
OFFICERS:
Ms D Godfrey
Ms G Curtis
Ms B Caffrey
Mr A Merry
Mr K Quinn
Miss J Narey
ATTENDEES:
Cllr D Wilby

Cllr J Dale

Representing
Dioceses
Academies
Maintained Schools
Post 16 provision
Academies (Governors)
Special Schools
PVI

Interim Director – Children’s Services, RCC
Head of Service, Learning and Skills, RCC
Head of Early Help, SEND and Inclusion
Finance Manager, RCC
Transformation & Assurance Lead, RCC
Interim Executive Officer, RCC

Portfolio Holder for Lifelong Learning, Early Years,
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities,
Inclusion
Councillor, RCC

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2

Rutland County Council
Catmose Oakham Rutland LE15 6HP
Telephone 01572 722577 Facsimile 01572 758307

Minutes of the MEETING of the SCHOOLS' FORUM held via Microsoft Teams on
Thursday, 18th June, 2020 at 4.00 pm
PRESENT:
1.
Mr C Smith (Chair)
2.
Mrs S Milner (Deputy Chair)
3.
Mrs A Chambers
4.
Mr S Cox
5.
Mrs M Darlington
6.
Mr B Gale
7.
Mr R Shore
8.
Mr G Thompson
9.
Mrs F Wilce
10. Mr S Williams

Representing
Academies
Academies
Academies
SEN Headteacher
PVI
Trade Union
Post 16 provision
Dioceses
Maintained Schools
Academies

IN ATTENDANCE:
11. Mr D Wilby

Representing
Portfolio Holder for Lifelong Learning, Early
Years, Special Educational Needs &
Disabilities, Inclusion
Strategic Director People (DCS, DASS),
RCC
Deputy Director – Children, RCC
Head of Early Help, SEND and Inclusion
Head of Service, Learning and Skills, RCC
Finance Manager, RCC
Business Support, RCC
Service Manager, Early Intervention, SEND
and Inclusion, RCC

12.

Mr M Andrews

13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.

Ms D Godfrey
Ms B Caffrey
Ms G Curtis
Mr A Merry
Miss J Narey (Clerk)
Mr K Quinn

APOLOGIES:
19. Mrs J Gilboy
20. Mr R Gooding
1

Representing
Academies (Governors)
Academies

MINUTES AND ACTIONS FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting of the Schools’ Forum held on the 13th February 2020
were confirmed as a true and accurate record of the meeting.
Action 1
Andrew confirmed that the figures were based on December school pupil numbers
and he would distribute the details to schools. He also agreed to send each school

5

details regarding the impact on their individual funding for moving 0.5% from schools
block to the High Needs Block in 2020/21 and to show what the effects would be if the
percentage increased to 1%.
Andrew confirmed that this action was still to be done as the lockdown situation had
overtaken events. Carl requested that the data be sent to schools by the end of June.
ACTION: Andrew Merry
Action 2
Andrew confirmed that every LA in the East Midlands would be producing a recovery
plan. It was agreed that Andrew would contact each LA for a breakdown regarding
their spending of the High Needs Budget.
Andrew reported that he had contacted the other local authorities but had received no
responses. However, he would look at the published outturn reports presented at the
other Schools’ Forums and send out the links for information.
ACTION: Andrew Merry
Action 3
It was agreed that Andrew would check to see what census figures the 2020/21
budgets were based on.
Andrew confirmed that the census figures used were from autumn 2019.
Action 4
The significant change in the mobility criteria was queried. Andrew confirmed that the
National Funding Formula was used to calculate the value, but he would check to
confirm
Andrew confirmed that the National Funding Formula was used to calculate the value.
Action 5
Andrew to give an update regarding funding for new developments at the next
meeting.
Andrew reported that any future building needs must be identified up front before the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funding can be used to fund any works regarding
school places. However, the CIL was not a fixed amount and could be amended
accordingly.
2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
No declarations of interest were made.

3

PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS
None received

4

SCHOOLS FORUM OPERATIONAL AND GOOD PRACTICE GUIDANCE
i.

5

Attendees were informed that the guidance had been updated due to the current
lockdown. As a result, the guidance now confirmed that Schools’ Forum
meetings could be held virtually as from the 18th June 2020 to the 31st March
2021.

FUNDING UPDATE

6

A report was received from Andrew Merry. During the discussion, the following points
were noted:
i.
ii.

Overall deficit to be carried forward to 2020/21 was currently £268k (0.91%)
The High Needs budget had a reduction of £91k. This was due to:
•
•
•

iii.

iv.

v.

A high cost education placement that ended and was not replaced.
A fall in placement fee’s due to timescales for placements and children
moving out of county.
SEND recovery projects being delayed due to lockdown.

The underspend of £19k on the schools’ block funding was not expected. The
Council was currently investigating the reasons why and Andrew confirmed that
he would notify members once that information was found.
ACTION: Andrew Merry
There was a surplus on the Admissions Service of £15k, due to a staff vacancy.
This figure would be added to the brought forward position giving an overall
surplus of £36k.
The government had announced school funding for exceptional costs associated
with Covid-19. Full details can be found on the government’s website:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-financialsupport-for-schools/school-funding-exceptional-costs-associated-withcoronavirus-covid-19-for-the-period-march-to-july-2020

AGREED:
a. The Schools Forum noted the outturn position for 2019/20 Dedicated Schools
Grant
6

DSG RECOVERY PLAN: UPDATE
A report was received from Andrew Merry and Kevin Quinn. During the discussion,
the following points were noted:
i.

Budget model would be updated to include some new factors including:
•
•
•

ii.
iii.
iv.

v.

EHCP figures had risen. 37 new children would now be added to the 35
plans currently being done.
Cost savings incurred due to projects not starting because of lockdown
Additional funding provided to the High Needs Block

All primary schools are involved, and good feedback had been received with
schools and staff all very positive.
The first meeting of the Education Inclusion Partnership had been cancelled due
to Covid-19, but a new meeting was now scheduled for the 17th July 2020.
Additional support had been commissioned, through training packages and the
educational psychology service, to support the re-opening of schools and the
transition of children back into school.
Commissioned SEND Consultancy have finished the first part of the review.
Report was due at the end of June. Steve informed attendees that the
consultants were very knowledgeable; that he had received good feedback and
found the whole process very productive.

7

vi.

Changes had been made to the SEND Inclusion Fund so that children, who
resided out of county but attended a Rutland early years’ setting, would be
funded by Rutland.

AGREED:
a) The Schools’ Forum noted the project progress to date.
7

SEND CAPITAL GRANT: UPDATE
A verbal update was received from Bernadette Caffrey. During the discussion, the
following points were noted:
i.

ii.
iii.
iv.
v.

vi.

8

The Uppingham Community College project was nearing completion and would
be within budget. There had been very good joint working and the project had
gone very well.
It was hoped for a completion sign-off to be made on the 19th June so that
furniture can start to be installed.
All staff and children have been identified for a September 2020 start date.
Service delivery plan was in place and moving forward.
Bernadette meeting with the DfE on the 22nd June to discuss how the SEND
Capital Grant has been utilised so far and what we could use it for moving
forward.
Carl requested that the SEN strategy be placed on the agenda for the next
meeting. Stuart stated that full details could be found on his school’s website:
http://www.catmosecollege.com/sen/
AGENDA

FEES AND CHARGES: UPDATE
A report was received from Gill Curtis. During the discussion, the following points
were noted:
i.
ii.
iii.

Annual review of the Learning and Skills Service annual charges was completed.
Charges to schools had not risen since 2016.
Charges now increased in line with inflation:
Service Level 1 – Support, Ranking and Distance Measurement
• Advice and support throughout the admissions round – £51.00
• Ranking – based on number of applications received for the school @ £38.00
per hour based on a processing time of 5 minutes per application
• Distance Measurement – £62.00 for primary schools and £87.00 for
secondary schools.
Service Level 2 – Support and Distance Measurement
• Advice and support throughout the admissions round – £51.00
• Distance Measurement – £62.00 for primary schools and £87.00 for
secondary schools.
Service Level 3 – Support only
• Advice and support throughout the admissions round – £77.00

iv.

Academies will be charged a fixed annual fee of £433.50 to cover both

8

moderation and monitoring activities and attendance at workshops for teachers
new to Year 2 and Year 6.
9

ANY URGENT BUSINESS
i.

10

No official SCAP would be done in 2020 but the Local Authority would be
compiling an unofficial SCAP as it would be a useful exercise for future place
planning.

FORWARD PLAN FOR 2020
i.

11

There were no changes to the forward plan.

MEETING DATES
•
•

Thursday, 1st October 2020, 4.00 – 5.00 p.m., Council Chamber
Thursday, 10th December 2020, 4.00 – 5.00 p.m., Council Chamber

SUMMARY OF ACTIONS
No.

Ref.

1.

1

2.

1

3.

5
iii

Action

Person

Andrew agreed to send each school details
regarding the impact on their individual funding for
moving 0.5% from schools block to the High
Needs Block in 2020/21 and to show what the
effects would be if the percentage increased to
1%.
Action 2
Andrew confirmed that every LA in the East
Midlands would be producing a recovery plan. It
was agreed that Andrew would contact each LA
for a breakdown regarding their spending of the
High Needs Budget.
Andrew to look at the published outturn reports
presented at the other Schools’ Forums and send
out the links for information.
The underspend of £19k on the schools’ block
funding was not expected. The Council was
currently investigating the reasons why and
Andrew confirmed that he would notify members
once that information was found.

Andrew Merry

Andrew Merry

Andrew Merry

---oOo--The Chairman declared the meeting closed at 17:02
---oOo---

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

1ST OCTOBER 2020
SCHOOLS FUNDING 2020/21
1

INTRODUCTION

1.1

The purpose of Schools Forum is to advise local authorities on the operation of the
local Schools Budget and its distribution among schools and other bodies. This
paper updates the Forum on the provisional outturn for the Schools Budget for
2020/21, the funding position for 21/22 and other matters from the DfE on Schools
Financing.,

2

FORECAST OUTTURN 2020/21

2.1

The table below summarises the forecast 2020/21 DSG Outturn against each of
the four blocks.
Schools
£000

Surplus/(Deficit) Carry
Forwards from 2019/20
DSG Allocations prior to
recoupment and deductions for
direct funding of high needs
places by ESFA
Difference in Clawback
Transfer between blocks
Academy Recoupment
Expenditure in Year
Under/(Over) spends in
2020/21
Surplus/(Deficit) Carried
Forward to 2021/22
Percentage of DSG

High
Needs
£000

Early
Years
£000

Central
Schools
£000

Total
£000

19

(458)

135

37

(267)

25,261

4,224

1,833

166

(126)
(23,288)
(1,847)

126
(234)
(4,468)

(1,855)

0

(352)

(23)

7

(367)

19
0.06%

(810)
2.57%

112
0.36%

44
0.14%

(634)

31,484
0
0
(23,522)
(159)
(8,330)
0

2.2

The High Needs Block

2.2.1

As can be seen from the table above, the High Needs budget is showing an
overspend forecast of £352k, this is £52k more than 2019/20. However, within
2020, this forecast overspend has reduced from Q1 (£710k) through the ceasing
of high cost school placements (£120k) and the revised outturn on project budgets
for SEND recovery work due to Covid-19.

11

2.2.2

As schools return demand in the High Needs area is likely to change, its likely that
the forecast will increase as additional demand flows. We will begin to see this by
the next schools forum and will be better placed to model the potential impact.

2.2.3

The in-year overspend will be added to brought forward position of £458k, making
a total deficit on the DSG reserve for high needs of £810k. This is the equivalent of
2.57% of total DSG allocated to Rutland in 2020/21.

2.2.4

Due to the deficit on the High Needs block and as per 5.2 in the DSG Grant
Conditions 2020/21, the recovery plan must be available for the DfE to review on
request. The recovery plan is currently being updated in line with the projects
progress and considering the impact of Covid-19. The DfE have published a
template which can be used at the discretion of the Council. This template is
currently being reviewed in line with the Councils current plan to understand the
differences between the two. The revised plan will be presented at the next
schools forum.

2.2.5

Schools Forum should also note that we have been informed that the DfE are
working with a number of pilot authorities to help reduce deficits (including
potentially making further funding available). We will be following progress with
interest to see if solutions are found that could be applied here in Rutland.

2.3

The Early Years Block

2.3.1

The Early Years Block shows an in-year deficit of £23k. This has been forecast
assuming current spending levels, although the Covid-19 pandemic may impact
this projection. Therefore, the situation is being monitored.

2.3.2

When the £23k in year deficit is accounted for there is still a £112k surplus. The
Council wants to work with providers to see how the £112k can be used to support
the sector at the next Early Years forum on the 29th September and will report
back at the next Schools Forum.

2.4

The Schools Block

2.4.1

Schools block is forecast to break even for 2020/21. Therefore the £19k surplus
brought forward is forecast to be a £19k surplus position at the end of 2020/21.

2.5

Central Services Block

2.5.1

There is an in year surplus forecast on the Admissions Service of £7k, attributable
to lower than anticipated staffing costs and a £3.5k contribution from schools. This
under spend will be added to the brought forward position giving an overall
forecast surplus of £44k.

3

SCHOOLS FINANCING UPDATES

3.1

Schemes for financing local authority-maintained schools

3.1.1

Further to the publication of the ‘Financial transparency of LA maintained schools
and academy trusts’ consultation response on 21st July, the DfE have now
updated the statutory guidance on schemes for financing local authority
maintained schools.

12

3.1.2

The changes to Issue 12 of the scheme for financing local authority-maintained
schools will take practical effect from 1st April 2021.

3.1.3

The scheme now includes the provision for schools to submit a 3-year budget
forecast each year, and a recovery plan if the deficit rises above 5%.

3.1.4

The changes relating to financing and operating leases (IFRS16) that were due to
come into effect on 1 April 2020 have been delayed until 1 April 2021, due to the
COVID-19 pandemic.

3.1.5

Meetings will be scheduled with schools affected to provide maintained schools
with further guidance. The Council is also reviewing and updating its Scheme for
the Financing of Schools.

3.2

Updated School Information (England) Regulations 2020

3.2.1

The School Information (England) Regulations 2020 take effect from 1 January
2021 and require maintained schools to publish on their website the number of
school employees (if any) whose gross annual salary is £100,000 or more in
£10,000 bands. The DfE is recommending this be presented in tabular form.

3.2.2

Schools must also publish a link to the specific page on the Schools Financial
Benchmarking dedicated to their school using the unique reference number
allocated to the school by the Department for Education.

3.3

Consistent Financial Reporting Framework

3.3.1

The DfE have updated the 2020 to 2021 consistent financial reporting (CFR)
framework to include guidance for coronavirus (COVID-19) related funding.
Section l18 now states how grants provided specifically in connection with COVID19 should be recorded.

3.4

Catch Up Premium

3.4.1

Allocations have now been published on gov.uk website. The provisional
allocations are:

3.4.2

for primary, middle, secondary and all through local authority-maintained schools,
academies and free schools


3.4.3

for local authority maintained special schools, pupil referral units and hospital
schools


3.4.4

£80 for each pupil aged 4 and over recorded in Reception to Year Group 11 in
the October 2019 school census.

£240 for each high needs place recorded on their local authority’s section 251
budget return statement for 2019 to 2020

for special, AP and hospital academies and free schools, and for non-maintained
special schools


£240 per place from published high needs place numbers for the 2020 to 2021
academic year

13

3.4.5

for local authorities with SEND pupils placed in independent special settings


£240 for each pupil with an Education Health and Care Plan, or SEN support,
educated in an independent special setting, as recorded on their January 2020
alternative provision census.

3.4.6

The first payment (as set out below) is based on these provisional allocations. As
set out in earlier guidance, we will make two further payments in 2021. For
primary, middle, secondary and all through local authority-maintained schools,
academies and free schools, these will be based on final allocations using pupil
numbers from the October 2020 census for mainstream schools. The final
allocations could be significantly different to the provisional allocations.

3.4.7

The first payment is worth 25% of the provisional allocation, rounded to the
nearest £10, and will be paid to:


Local authorities on 30 September 2020



Academies on 8 October 2020



Non-maintained special schools in November 2020

4

SCHOOLS FUNDING 2021/22

4.1.1

In July, the DfE published the National Funding Formula for schools and high
needs for 2021/2022. This year 2021/22 will see a core funding increase of
£4.8bn. School funding through the NFF is increasing overall by 4%. High needs
funding will increase by 10% and Central services will see a 4% increase.

4.1.2

Every school will be allocated at least 2% more pupil-led funding per pupil
compared to its 2020-21 NFF baseline. The minimum per pupil funding levels will
ensure that every primary school receives at least £4,000 per pupil, and every
secondary school at least £5,150 per pupil.

4.1.3

Technical changes are the inclusion of the teachers' pay grant (TPG) and
teachers' pension employer contribution grant (TPECG) in the minimum funding
guarantee (MFG) baselines.

4.1.4

The 2021 to 2022 modelling authority proforma tool (APT) is now available to local
authorities allowing provisional allocations to be calculated.

4.1.5

The Council will present a draft budget position at the next meeting which will likely
include a request for a 0.5% transfer between the School block and the High
needs block as per the prior year.

5

RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1

Schools Forum is asked to note the forecast outturn position for 2020/21
Dedicated Schools Grant.

14

Agenda Item 7

1st October 2020
DSG Recovery Plan – Position Update
1. Purpose
To update members of School Forum on the progress of the Recovery Plan initiatives designed
to reduce the pressure on the DSG High Needs Block.
2. Background
School Forum have supported £357k of additional annual investment from the High Needs
Block to develop a range of initiatives which aim to increase capacity within mainstream
schools to support children and young people with SEND.
All projects which are developed under the ‘recovery plan’ have a focus on the three priority
areas as agreed through the school summit meetings with Head Teachers:
1. Children with SEND should be supported, as far as is possible and appropriate, within the
least restrictive education environment close to home.
2. High needs funding and support interventions for children with SEND are not appropriately
distributed and requires redistribution.
3. Additional support and funding are required earlier in the education system with investment
in different types of support within and across mainstream schools.
Managing the high needs pressure
The forecasted accumulated deficit on the high needs budget is 810k by 31st March 2021 which
equates to 2.6% of the total designated school grant (DSG). As reported in January 2020 the
DfE no longer require formal submission of a recovery plan where the overall deficit exceeds
1%, however the local authority must:
1. Provide information as and when requested by the DfE about its plans for managing its
DSG account in the 2020 to 2021 financial year.
2. Provide information as and when requested by the DfE about pressures and potential
savings on its high needs budget.
3. Meet with officials from the DfE as and when requested to discuss the local plans and
financial situation.
4. Keep School Forum regularly updated about the DSG account and plans for handling it,
including high needs pressures and potential saving. This report and the Finance update
report are both examples of the Council meeting this obligation
As yet no request has been made by the DfE to review the Councils recovery plan. Initiatives
under our recovery plan that will help prevent the existing pressure remains imperative and will
ensure we continue to meet the requirements of the DfE.

15

Financial Modelling - Latest Position
To support decision making and project investment, a five year projection of high needs
expenditure has been developed utilising a number of demand based assumptions e.g. the
annual growth rate of education health and care plans (EHCP) etc.
Previously we reported the five year budget model was being updated to account for a number
of factors which we anticipate will influence the initial projection, this includes:




Factors which are no longer in line with original assumptions including a higher rate of
EHCPs maintained in Rutland (up 18% since June 2019) and a higher rate of children
moving in county with EHCPs last year than anticipated etc.
The current pandemic and potential impact on SEND and Inclusion demand.
Additional funding provided into the high needs block.

This piece of work has been delayed due to the Councils Covid response, but it will be
completed for an update at the next schools forum.
The financial model is based on a number of assumptions of success e.g. proportionate
reduction in special school placements etc. and it must be noted that each action within the
recovery plan factors in assumed impact and there are no guarantees to each element. The
success of projects is also subject to a number of influencing factors including the commitment
of schools to engage, test and commit to alternative approaches.
3. Project Progress
There are four work streams currently funded and during the first financial year only a
proportion of funding, £79k, was utilised as projects developed. It is anticipated expenditure
will increase once all aspects are fully operational and full costs are realized across a full
financial year. The table below outlines the amounts allocated for each area and the
expenditure which is already committed for the year.
Project
Primary Nurture Model
SEMH Specialist Teacher
Education Inclusion Partnerships
Therapeutic Provisions
Total

Initial Allocation
£107k
£80k
£70k
£100k
£357k

Committed for 20/21
£100k
£78.6k
£22.8k
£35k
£236.4k

The commitment above is reflected in the forecast deficit and will be reviewed in line with
reviewing the overall financial modelling.
Education Inclusion Partnerships (EIP)
The school inclusion partnership aims to share responsibility and coordinate support and
resource for complex cases and for children with additional support needs across the school
system.
An external provider with experience in delivering EIPs has been commissioned for up to two
days per week to co-ordinate and oversee implementation of the partnerships across the
primary and secondary sector.
Primary EIP:

16






All primary schools have indicated their support for the partnership, the vast majority have
now signed the memorandum of understanding with six primary schools, who are
representative of the whole sector, form the primary partnership panel. These are: English
Martyrs, Catmose Primary, Ketton CofE, Cottesmore Academy, Uppingham CofE and
Oakham CofE.
A handful of Primary schools are yet to sign the agreement.
The EIP, suspended during the lockdown, will meet in September an interim meeting was
held in July to plan.

Secondary EIP:
Development of an EIP across secondary school is yet formally progress but the intention is to
progress this, utilising a similar model as the primary sector and we have begun discussions
with other secondary schools who have implemented EIPs. This work is a priority for 2020-21.
Primary Nurture Model
The nurture model aims to strengthen approaches across primary schools through the delivery
of outward facing expertise and advice to help schools adopt evidence based principles and
practice to support children with social, emotional and mental health needs (SEMH).
A nurture project board run by Edith Weston Academy continues to meet regularly to oversee
implementation which includes the delivery of;



Outreach based provision for schools, undertaking school visits, providing expertise, advice
and training to support other schools to implement the principles.
A nurture space providing a small number of on-site places to support the most complex
children.

Referral processes and a clear operating model linked to the Education Inclusion Partnership
are being established. During lockdown virtual introduction sessions with school SENCo’s have
been helpful in launching the outreach approach and the on-site provision.
The schools have already had some significant success in supporting children in making
positive progress, who might otherwise have been likely to require special school provision.
Specialist Teacher Support
Rutland County Council initially commissioned Leicester City Council to deliver additional
specialist teaching support for children with Social, Emotional and Mental Health (SEMH) for
two days a week which began in December 2019. This contract was extended for a year to
provide full week coverage from September 2020 based on the positive feedback from schools
and impact demonstrated following interventions that had been undertaken. It will therefore
utilise the full budget in this financial year.
The specialist teachers support Rutland schools and their role involves delivering practical
advice and support, including case work, whilst working to identify creative teaching and
learning approaches or suitable adaptations which can be delivered to support inclusive
environments for children with additional needs.

17

Due to the limited initial capacity the provider focused on 7 schools where children were
identified as at risk of imminent exclusion due to SEMH needs. Support and training for schools
during the transition period was offered during lockdown when the teachers could not visit
school sites. The provision is now the equivalent of 5 days a week in term time, offering support
to all Rutland Primaries through the EIP.
Therapeutic Support
Funding has been set aside to identify and implement evidence based interventions and
therapeutic models which will support children with SEND and children with additional social
and emotional needs which impact on their learning.
A range of interventions have been reviewed, areas of focus are emerging from the requests
for support already received; specialist teaching support is now available and a range of health
based provisions such as therapy for children at risk of avoidable language delay, providing
individual or group work for vocabulary, attention and listening, speech sounds, narrative
approaches, verbal reasoning, social use of language.
This work has made some progress in some areas since lockdown and dialogue will remain
with providers to establish the fuller offer during this academic year.
To support the reopening of schools and the transition of children back into school a small pot
of funding was ring fenced from this fund to purchase additional capacity such as school
training packages and educational psychology support etc.

4. Value for Money and System Review Update
SEND Consultancy have completed the first stage of their review of our specialist nursery and
primary provision which involved undertaking site visits and working closely with the school
leadership and SEND team in the Parks, Oakham CofE and early year’s providers in Rutland
to conduct an initial review of the provision and the pathway from early years in to the primary
phase.
A final report was provided in June which will set out recommendations for developing the early
years and primary SEND and Inclusion offer for Rutland children. A development day is
planned for 24th September.

5. Next Steps
Continue to implement each project and monitor their success, measuring outcomes for
children and gathering feedback from schools with a view to determining next steps.
6. Recommendations
Members of School Forum note the project progress to date.

18

Agenda Item 8

Inclusive Rutland
Rutland’s SEND and Inclusion
Strategy
2017
(Updated 2019)

SEND and Inclusion Strategy Updated September 2019

19

1|Page

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Our Vision
To support all children and young people with special educational needs
and disabilities to lead healthy, independent and safe lives.
In Rutland we are committed to being a County that promotes inclusion,
maximises children’s and young people’s opportunities to be independent and
focuses on their abilities not their disabilities. We want the information on
support and the way to get support to be understood by our children and
families and professionals and that the support will reflect the individual needs
of a child. We believe that every child and young person with special
educational needs and disabilities from Rutland should, wherever possible,
have their needs met locally, so that they can enjoy a family life, be with
friends and that they should expect to receive high quality education, health
and social care support that promotes their wellbeing and their journey to
adulthood.
Our Strategy
Our Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) and Inclusion Strategy
will turn our vision into actions. Our Strategy provides us with an opportunity
to create a shared view of the challenges faced by children and young people
and our SEND Development Plan will put actions in place for children and
young people with special educational needs and disability. It brings our
health, education, and social care partners together and puts children and
families at the centre of our services. There is recognition that there is
increased demand and growing pressure on the S E N D system and that
we need to work collaboratively so that we utilise our resources in a way that
achieves maximum impact and the best outcomes for children and young
people with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND). Our Strategy
enables us together to identify the gaps in services, and challenge what
needs to change and improve to achieve better outcomes for children and
young people.
This document outlines Rutland’s’ ‘Local Offer’ and informs the approach
partners take in working with children and families and the design of future
services. Our SEND and Inclusion Strategy takes into account national
research and b e s t p r a c t i c e a n d r e c o g n i s e s the importance of the early
years and early intervention.
SEND and Inclusion Strategy Updated September 2019

2|Page

20

Our offer also takes into account key messages from Working Together to
Safeguard Children, (DfE 2015), the SEND Code of Practice (DfE/DoH 2015).
This Strategy sets out clear expectations of the Council and Clinical
Commissioning Groups (CCGs), and other partners, specially health and
education providers, which reflects the statutory requirement under primary
legislation, regulation and case law as set out in the SEND Code of Practice
(2015), Section 28 Duty to Co-operate and the Leicester, Leicestershire and
Rutland, (LLR) Safeguarding Partnership’s Safeguarding procedures. The
expectations of professionals in Rutland as defined in the SEN and Disability
Code of Practice (2015) include;
 Participation of and co-production with children and families in decision
making about their support
 Services will work together to ensure that EHC Plans will identify not only
a child’s or young person’s education needs and support but address their
health and social care needs too. This will be tested though our
partnership performance and quality assurance mechanisms
 Special educational provision is made available for those who need it and
children with SEND are treated fairly
 Early years providers, schools and colleges know precisely where their
children and young people with SEND are in their learning and
development and provide suitable stretch and challenge in their education.
 Support children’s successful preparation for transition through phases of
their education and transition in to adulthood and employment
Rutland is committed to safeguarding disabled children and young people,
promoting safer care, and ensuring that children are appropriately
protected.
1. Where are we now?
The demand for and the spending on services and support for children with
SEND in Rutland have grown significantly in the last three years. A s o f
O c t o b e r 2 0 1 9 there are;
 706 children/young people attending Rutland schools have an Education
Health and Care Plan or SEN Support (School Census: Summer 2019)

SEND and Inclusion Strategy Updated September 2019

21

Page 3

 226 children living in Rutland have an Education Health and Care Plan
(EHCP).
 The percentage of children in Rutland Schools not including Special or
Independent Schools are (School Census: Summer 2019):
-

Primary Schools - 2.2% of pupils have an EHCP. 11.1% receive SEN
Support

-

Secondary Schools - 2.3% of pupils have an EHCP. 10.3% receive
SEN Support

 67 children living in Rutland attend special or alternative provision, 49 of
which attend an out of county special school.
 39 children attend local mainstream designated special provisions.
 33 young people living in Rutland attend post-16 out of county colleges.
 133 children with a disability are in receipt of Aiming High short breaks or
positive activities.
 18 children with a disability are in receipt of Social Care (CiN) care
packages.
 According to the Labour Force Survey, disabled people are now more
likely to be employed than they were in previous years, but still remain
significantly less likely to be in employment than non-disabled people. In
March 2019 we reported that 97% of the year 12 and 13 cohort were in
education or training compared with 86.7% of 16 and 17 year olds with an
EHCP.
 Expenditure on high needs in Rutland has increased by 41% from £2.7
million in 2012/2013 to £3.8million in 2018/19.
2. What will we achieve?
1. Identify the needs of our children sooner and put support in place earlier,
so we reduce the need for unnecessary assessments and intrusion in
families’ lives
2. More children will be able to maintain their education and their family life
in Rutland when it is in their interest.
Page 4

SEND and Inclusion Strategy Updated September 2019

22

3. Children and parents will be encouraged to seek appropriate support and
will have more choice and feel more in control of their support plan.
3. What are we going to do?
1. Monitor and review the services for children and young people with SEND
and respond to them through evidence-based early support and
intervention across our health, social care and education system.
2. Support our early years providers, mainstream schools and post 16
settings with the resources, training and time they need, so that they can
provide effective provision for children and young people with emotional
and behavioural difficulties and special educational needs and disabilities,
so that children can maintain their education and make good progress in
their learning.
3. Include children and young people with special educational needs and
disabilities and their parents or carers, especially those who find it hard to
access our services, in decisions about their individual support and
listen to and act on what they tell us about local education, health and care
provision.
This Strategy will be supported by an SEND Development Plan containing, a
detailed set of actions with timescales, outcome measures, and resource
implications.
4. How will we know we have succeeded?
Partners in education, health, and social care through the Children and
Young People’s Partnership arrangements, will agree the key performance
indicators to measure the impact and effectiveness of our Strategy to test the
effectiveness of our ‘Local Offer’ and to monitor if the outcomes for children
and their families are being achieved.
Our performance indicators will measure key outcomes:
1. That timescales are met in assessing and responding to children’s needs
and the need for specialist services or unnecessary intrusions in families’
lives is reduced.
2. Children and young people achieve their potential and educational
standards at least in line with those seen nationally
SEND and Inclusion Strategy Updated September 2019

23

Page 5

3. More children retained and succeeding in mainstream educational settings
if this is the most appropriate setting for them, through high quality
education provision
4. Children and their families report improvements in their life at the end of an
intervention.
5. The sustained and meaningful engagement of children and their parents is
evidenced in their support plans
6. More young people are in training and employment
7. There is fair access to health and social care services for children, young
people and their families across the county and across our geographical
boundaries
8. Decisions are robust and can demonstrably evidence best value for
money
Having completed a self-evaluation (SEF) of our services, we have identified
key actions which are set out in our SEND Development Plan. We show the
specific actions, how we will measure success, and the timescales for
completion. We will review the Development Plan regularly over the timescale
of the strategy. We will report a n n u a l l y to the Children and Young People’s
Partnership and the Health and Well Being Board and we will publish this
on the Council Local Offer website.
The Strategy has had input from a broad range of stakeholders including
young people, parents and carers.
In summary the partnership and children and families, will know the progress
we are making and why.

Inclusion in Rutland
Inclusive Rutland describes our positive response to individual needs,
differences, abilities and disabilities by striving to meet the needs of different
people and taking deliberate action to create environments where everyone
feels respected and able to achieve their full potential. It means putting
support in place when it is needed and knowing when to withdraw, adjusting
an offer or an intervention to meet health, social care or education needs. In
Page 6

SEND and Inclusion Strategy Updated September 2019

24

education, inclusion embodies the child's right to participate and the school's
duty to accept the child and to take every action to ensure they succeed. This
could include providing more accessible and understandable information,
adjustment to the delivery of certain curriculum areas or providing one to one
support in school or in college.
Being ‘inclusive’ requires us to meet the needs of children who may
experience emotional and behavioural difficulties which challenges their
education. It means through our ‘early intervention’ support we will meet
the needs of children as soon as additional needs start to emerge, or when
there is a strong likelihood that an additional need or disability will emerge in
the future.
Education settings – early year’s settings, schools and colleges – should be
able to meet the needs of most children with a learning disability and are
required to make ‘reasonable adjustments’ to be able to do so through
quality differentiated teaching and learning.
SEN Support is the graduated process schools and other settings use to
identify and meet the needs of children with SEN. This support should be
regularly reviewed, utilising the, ‘assess, plan, do, review’ model, with support
then adjusted where necessary to ensure it is still effective and leading to
improved outcomes in line with the SEND Code of Practice (2015).
Some children and young people with a special educational need may also
have a disability which does not affect their ability to learn but might stop them
from being able to do certain day-to-day things. In this document the term
SEN and Disability is used across the 0 to 25 age range and includes
learning difficulties and disabilities.
Our ‘Local Offer’ is for all children with additional needs that emerge at any
point throughout childhood, adolescence and in to adulthood. The ‘Local
Offer’ includes universal services; such as early year’s settings and schools,
health visiting and GP services or adult learning, voluntary and community
groups, one to one family support in the home, or the Aiming High for disabled
children short breaks, and specialist services, such as social care or specialist
health services.

SEND and Inclusion Strategy Updated September 2019

25

Page 7

Rutland’s SEND Local Offer:
http://ris.rutland.gov.uk/kb5/rutland/directory/localoffer.page?localofferchannel=0

The financial context is increasingly challenging and will continue to be so.
Demands and pressures on services are increasing while resources
become more constrained. There are likely to be further changes during
the life of this Strategy that we will need to take account of.
We will manage and monitor the equitable use of our SEND funding to make
sure we get the best outcomes for children and young people with higher
level needs and the most value for money. In this context it is more
important than ever that all partners work together to share information,
expertise and resources to meet needs and ensure positive outcomes for
children and young people with SEND.
We will operate our multi agency SEND Panel supported by partners to
ensure we have robust decision making and accountability for the decisions
we make in assessing and responding to children and young people’s needs.
Key Principles
Rutland County Council and East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical
Commissioning Group and its partners’ commitment to an Inclusive Rutland
is central to the delivery of the Sustainability and Transformation Plan, the
Children’s Plan, the Health and Well Being Strategy and the Education
Improvement Framework, with inclusion cutting across key priority outcomes
which are underpinned by a key set of principles, as set out in the SEND Code
of Practice,
(2015) and reflected in our Locality Thresholds Document
(updated 2019), such as;






Identify in the early years utilising the Integrated Development
Assessment, children and young people’s needs and put in place early
intervention to support them
Support the participation and co-production of children and their parents
in decision making and strive to offer greater choice and control for
young people over their support
Promote inclusive practice and removing barriers to learning and access
to health and social care services
Page 8

SEND and Inclusion Strategy Updated September 2019

26









Reduce duplication of assessment so that children, young people and
their families do not tell their stories multiple times to health, education
and social care professionals
Support young people to make successful transitions through phases,
(e.g. primary to secondary transfer) and/or types of provision and to
adulthood and independent living and employment
Our workforce will be supported to be multi-skilled, to be creative and
tenacious and adopt the principle of the Signs of Safety model of working
with families to identify strengths and to resolve challenges.
The services will offer best value for money and utilise shared expertise
and resource across partnerships.

Early Intervention
Rutland County Council provides the ‘front door’ through which
parents/carers and professionals can access additional support at any level,
including early help advice and support.
All children and families can access universal public health services, such
as their midwife, health visitor and GP. Integrated development
assessments are offered at key developmental points in a child’s life, to
support early identification of needs and to support access to timely
intervention.
Referrals to specialist services may be recommended for further
assessment before returning to universal services from General
Practitioners, Health Visitors or School Nurses.
The critical features of effective Early Intervention which have been
identified nationally and on which Rutland’s process is founded are:
 a multi-disciplinary approach that brings a range of professional skills
and expertise to bear through a “Team Around The Family” approach
 a relationship with a trusted Lead Professional who can engage the
child and their family, and if necessary co-ordinate the support needed
from other agencies around a family

SEND and Inclusion Strategy Updated September 2019

27

Page 9

 practice that empowers families and helps them to develop the capacity
to maintain a family life and fulfil their caring duties
 a holistic approach that addresses children’s e d uc a t i o n , h e a l th
and s oc i a l c a re needs in the wider family and whenever possible in
their community
 a published local offer of support, services and provision, how to access it
and how to raise concerns or seek redress and a simple and streamlined
referral and assessment processes
 Increased integration of services and joint commissioning across the Local
Authority and Health services.
Identifying children who would benefit from early intervention
The Children and Families Act 2014 (sections 22/24), clearly sets out the
Local Authority’s and the NHS’s duties to identify all children and young
people in their area who may have special educational need or have or may
have a disability. ‘Working Together to Safeguard Children (DfE 2013,
revised 2015) and Rutland’s Early Help Strategy puts the responsibility
on all professionals and educators to identify emerging n e e d s and to take
professional responsibility to ensure that if a family does not meet the
thresholds for specific services, that action is taken to prevent the lower level
needs escalating.
Key professionals and educators working in universal services in Rutland
are best placed to identify children or their families, who have or may have
an SEN or disability and therefore at risk of poor outcomes. Health
providers, schools and settings have a duty to ensure that all children achieve
well and that those with additional needs have an educational offer which
enables them to succeed and reach their potential. Early intervention is
essential, with high quality teaching reflecting the need of the child and
adjusted to enable the child to access a curriculum through which they
develop skills which will improve their life chances. Wherever it is
appropriate to do so, children with additional needs should be supported to
access a mainstream setting and have support for their health and social
care needs.
This is achievable and will be central to the success of the Rutland SEND
and Inclusion Strategy.
Page 10

SEND and Inclusion Strategy Updated September 2019

28

Alongside this, we will utilise local intelligence such as the Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment (JSNA), sc h oo l ’ s c en s us da t a , data collated through
the 0 to 19 Healthy Child programme and our Children’s Centre
programme, to understand local need and inform joint commissioning
arrangements.
Who can Access Support?
The provision of early help and inclusion services forms part of
Rutland’s continuum of help and support to respond to t h e d i f f e r e n t
levels of need of our individual children and families. In Rutland this is
described in our LLR Thresholds document updated September 2019.
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR) Thresholds Document
http://lrsb.org.uk/uploads/thresholds-for-access-to-services-for- children-andfamilies-feb-2015.pdf
How to Access Support
To ensure that the best possible and ea rl ies t support is provided to
children and families, there needs to be easy and accessible support
through the ‘Local Offer’ and an Early H e l p Assessment, which will
consider a child’s developmental needs, family and environmental factors
and parenting capacity.
All staff should be aware of the early help process, and understand their role
in it. This includes identifying emerging problems, liaising with the
designated safeguarding lead, sharing information with other professionals
to support early identification and assessment and, in some cases, acting as
the lead professional in undertaking an early help assessment.
In some cases a health, or social care professional or educator will be
able to identify a specific need, but may not be able to provide appropriate
support. In this instance the E ar l y He l p co-ordinator or Inclusion Officer at
Rutland County Council will support the referrer to the appropriate services or
intervention.

SEND and Inclusion Strategy Updated September 2019

29

Page 11

Where the assessment identifies e a r l y h e l p that cannot be met by a
single agency or service, there needs to be a coordinated response with
local agencies working together to support the family. The Team around
the Family (TAF) model is used in Rutland to bring together a range of
different practitioners from across the children and young people’s workforce
and where necessary adult services.
If a child’s needs are too complex to be supported successfully through the
early help offer, then the child or young person, their parents, school or
college can request either an assessment which may lead to an Education,
Health and Care Plan (EHCP) or a Single Assessment. Both assessments
should be conducted in a timely way, with all partners providing effective
support and provision towards the best outcomes for the child or young
person through regular review. Strategies and planning should be in place to
promote independence and ‘stepping down’ of provision if support is no
longer needed or appropriate.
Conclusion
The ‘Local Offer’ for children and families across the partnership in Rutland
continues to evolve and grow and there is now a greater need for ensuring
that our offer to children with SEN and disability is progressed and for our
actions to be robustly driven forward by the Children and Young People’s
Partnership. Parents and professionals have expressed a real commitment
to inclusion development and progressing services and support for children
with SEND in Rutland.

Page 12

SEND and Inclusion Strategy Updated September 2019

30

References
Working Together to Safeguard Children – A guide to inter-agency
working to safeguard and promote the welfare of children (March 2013,
revised 2015)
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_dat
a/file/592101/Working_Together_to_Safeguard_Children_20170213.pdf
2. Field, F. (2010) The Foundation Years: preventing poor
children becoming poor adults
3. Allen, G (2011), Early Intervention: The next steps
4. SEN and Disability Code of Practice 0 to 25 years – statutory guidance
for organizations which work with and support children and young people
who have a special educational needs or disability (January 2015)
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/send-code-of-practice-0-to25
5. Keeping Children Safe in Education – statutory guidance for schools
and colleges (September 2016) Equality Act 2010
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents
6. Children and Families Act 2014
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/6/contents/enacte
d
7. Care Act http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/contents/enacted
8. DfE Guidance on Equality Act for Schools May 2014
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_dat
a/file/315587/Equality_Act_Advice_Final.pdf
9. SEN and Disability Regulations 2014
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/1530/pdfs/uksi_20141530_en.pd
f
10. Transitions Guidance (Statements to EHCs)
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/send-managing-changesto- legislation-from-september-2014--3
1.

SEND and Inclusion Strategy Updated September 2019

31

Page 13

Useful Contacts:
Rutland County Council
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/
Rutland Family Information Service
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/education_and_learning/family_information_servic
e.aspx
Rutland Children’s Duty Team
Email: childrensduty@rutland.gcsx.gov.uk
Local Safeguarding Children’s Board (LSCB)
www.lrsb.org.uk
Thresholds of Access to Services for Children and Families in Leicester,
Leicestershire & Rutland
http://lrsb.org.uk/uploads/thresholds-for-access-to-services-for-children-andfamilies-feb- 2015.pdf
Working Together to Safeguarding Children (2015)
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/fil
e/419595/W orking_Together_to_Safeguard_Children.pdf
NSPCC
http://www.nspcc.org.uk/
Citizens Advice (RIASS)
https://www.citizensadvice.org.uk/
Rutland Parent Carer Voice
https://www.rutlandpcv.com/
Independent Supporters (RAISS)
http://www.sendiassleicester.org.uk/about-independent-support-leicesterleicestershire- and-Rutland
East Leicestershire Clinical Commissioning Group
https://eastleicestershireandrutlandccg.nhs.uk/
Leicestershire Partnership Trust
http://www.leicspart.nhs.uk/

Page 14

SEND and Inclusion Strategy Updated September 2019

32

Agenda Item 10

UPDATED: 24/09/20

Schools Forum Forward Plan: 2020
Schools
Forum Meeting

Description
Apologies
Minutes and actions from previous
meeting
Declarations of interest
Petitions, deputations and questions
Funding Update:

Regular and
Administrative
Agenda Items

February 2020

June 2020

October 2020

December
2020

Type
N/A
N/A

Chair
Chair

N/A
N/A
Information

Chair
Chair
A Merry

•
•
•
•

The DSG 2020/21 Outturn
The DSG 2021/2022 Budget Forecast
High needs
Early Years
o 30hr Additional Funding Overview
DfE/ ESFA funding announcements
School Capacity (SCAP) Returns
Review of Forward Plan and dates of next
meeting
Finance – 20/21 funding update
EYFS Working Party – verbal update by
Chair of Working Party
Alternative use of High Needs Funding
Recovery Plan: Update
SEND Capital Grant: update
Final outturn position for 2020/21 DSG
Demographics Annual Report (inc. pupil
place planning)
Annual Election of Chair & Vice-Chair
Annual Review of the Constitution and
Rules of Conduct
Annual review of Schools Forum
membership
Funding update – Schools Budget 202021 forecast: School funding formula
review
School Teachers’ Pay
Update – school improvement
commissioned programmes
SEND Needs Assessment

33

Lead

G Curtis

Information
Information
Decision

A Merry
G Curtis
Chair

Information
Information

A Merry
S Milner

Information
Information /
Discussion
Information
Information
Information

K Quinn
K Quinn

Decision
Decision

B Caffrey
A Merry
G Curtis & J
Weller
G Curtis
G Curtis

Decision

G Curtis

Information

A Merry

Discussion
Information

G Curtis
G Curtis

Discussion

B Caffrey

This page is intentionally left blank

